
WINTERVILLE TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA - AMENDED 

MONDAY, JANUARY 11, 2021 - 7:00 PM 

WINTERVILLE TOWN HALL ASSEMBLY ROOM 

REMOTE VIA ZOOM 

I. CALL TO ORDER.

II. INVOCATION.

III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE.

IV. WELCOME.

V. APPROVAL OF AGENDA.

VI. PROCLAMATION:

1. Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr.
2. Human Trafficking Awareness and Prevention.

VII. PUBLIC COMMENT: The Public Comment period of thirty minutes provides an opportunity for
residents to comment on any item included in the agenda or to address the Town Council on
any other matter related to the Town of Winterville. For an item included in the Public Hearing
section of the agenda, residents should address the Council at the time the Mayor invites public
comment on the item. No public comment may be made to the Council during the meeting,
except during the Public Comment period or as part of a Public Hearing. Individual speakers are
limited to a maximum of three minutes, and no more than three speakers may address the
Council on a single matter. The Town Council may elect to take no action on the matter
addressed by a speaker, may schedule the matter for further consideration at a future Council
meeting, or may refer the matter to Town staff for disposition. Copies of the Town Public
Comment Policy are available in the rear of the Assembly Room.

VIII. CONSENT AGENDA: The following items are considered routine in nature and will not be
discussed by the Town Council unless a Councilman or citizen requests that an item be
removed from the Consent Agenda for further discussion. The Mayor may allow citizens to
address an item or ask questions.

1. Approval of the following set of Council Meeting Minutes:
➢ December 14, 2021 Regular Meeting Minutes.

2. Eli’s Ridge, Phases 1 and 3 (Storm Water Detention Area) - Annexation: Direct Town Clerk
to Investigate the Sufficiency of Annexation.

IX. NEW BUSINESS:

1. Audit Contract for fiscal year 2020 – 2021 with Carr, Riggs, and Ingram, LLC.

X. OTHER AGENDA ITEMS.

1. Discussion on Suddenlink Letter (Councilman Smith).

XI. ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDAS/FUTURE WORK SESSIONS.



XII. REPORTS FROM DEPARTMENT HEADS:

❖ Minimum Housing/Code Enforcement (TLP)
❖ Tar Road Widening Project – Electric Engineering/Relocation (RS)
❖ New Electric Territory Project - Engineering/Installation (RS)
❖ Fork Swamp Greenway Project (EJ)
❖ Multi-Purpose Building Site Plan (EJ)
❖ Winterville Market/Town Common Plan (BW)
❖ Chapman Street Culvert - Nobel Canal Drainage Basin Study (BW)
❖ 2018 Sewer Rehabilitation (BW)
❖ Church Street Pump Station Rehabilitation Project (BW)
❖ Cemetery Expansion Project (BW)

XIII. ANNOUNCEMENTS:

1. Town Offices Closed: Monday, January 18, 2021 for the Martin Luther King, Jr. Holiday.

2. Town Council Vision Setting Meeting: Monday, January 25, 2021 – 5:30 PM – Town Hall
Assembly Room (Remote via ZOOM).

3. Recreation Advisory Board: Tuesday, January 26, 2021 @ 6:30 pm - Town Hall Assembly
Room (Remote via ZOOM).

XIV. REPORTS FROM THE TOWN ATTORNEY, MAYOR AND TOWN COUNCIL, AND TOWN
MANAGER.

XV. CLOSED SESSION:

NCGS § 143-318.11. (a) (5) To establish, or to instruct the public body's staff or negotiating
agents concerning the position to be taken by or on behalf of the public body in negotiating (i)
the price and other material terms of a contract or proposed contract for the acquisition of real
property by purchase, option, exchange, or lease; or (ii) the amount of compensation and other
material terms of an employment contract or proposed employment contract. (Acquisition of
Real Property.) and;

NCGS § 143-318.11. (a) (6) To consider the qualifications, competence, performance,
character, fitness, conditions of appointment, or conditions of initial employment of an individual
public officer or employee or prospective public officer or employee; or to hear or investigate a
complaint, charge, or grievance by or against an individual public officer or employee. General
personnel policy issues may not be considered in a closed session. A public body may not
consider the qualifications, competence, performance, character, fitness, appointment, or
removal of a member of the public body or another body and may not consider or fill a vacancy
among its own membership except in an open meeting. Final action making an appointment or
discharge or removal by a public body having final authority for the appointment or discharge or
removal shall be taken in an open meeting. (Personnel Matter).

XVI. ADJOURN.

SPECIAL NOTICE: Anyone who needs an interpreter or special accommodations to participate in the 
meeting should notify the Town Clerk, Don Harvey at (252) 215-2344 at least forty-eight (48) hours 
prior to the meeting. (Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) 1991.) 

2



 
 

PROCLAMATION 
DR. MARTIN LUTHER KING, JR. DAY 

 

WHEREAS, Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr. was a great moral leader who espoused 
peace and the brotherhood of man; and 

WHEREAS, Dr. King advanced the cause of the attainment of social changes for 
all people and the establishment of "The Beloved Community" worldwide; and 

WHEREAS, Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr. admonished us to have faith, wisdom, and 
conviction that racial harmony can be achieved and left us a blueprint for harmonious 
relationships, let us, therefore, embrace his principles of love, peace and non-violence as 
well as freedom and justice for all; and 

WHEREAS, a national holiday has been established by law to observe the 
anniversary of Dr. King's birth; and 

WHEREAS, the State of North Carolina has established the third Monday in January 
as a legal holiday in honor of his birth; 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor of the Town of Winterville 
hereby proclaim January 18, 2021, as "DR. MARTIN LUTHER KING, JR. DAY" throughout 
the Town of Winterville. I urge all citizens to avail themselves of the splendid opportunity 
to remember and celebrate the life of Dr. King, whose struggle for civil rights and noble 
pursuit of equality for all Americans deserve our heartfelt appreciation. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I do set my hand, and cause the seal of Winterville to be 
affixed this 11th day of January 2021. 

 
 
 
   
 Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
 
  
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

3



 

PROCLAMATION 
Human Trafficking Awareness and Prevention 

 

WHEREAS, human trafficking involves the recruitment, harboring, transportation, provision, buying 
or selling of human beings for their services of labor or commercial sex through the use of force, fraud or 
coercion; and 

WHEREAS, human trafficking violates basic human rights and deprives victims of human dignity 
and freedom. Victims are dehumanized and forced into modern-day slavery; and 

WHEREAS, human trafficking is a growing global and national problem, with North Carolina being 
consistently ranked among the top ten states for prevalence in human trafficking; and 

WHEREAS, it is imperative that we educate our communities, our young people, and families to take 
an active interest in learning how to recognize the risks and resist predators who use coercion and threats 
to manipulate children as young as 12 into labor or sex trafficking; and 

WHEREAS, in recognition of the need for that education, the NC General Assembly enacted 
legislation mandating that sex trafficking prevention and awareness information be included in the sexual 
health education curriculum; and 

WHEREAS, the NC General Assembly enacted legislation in 2019 mandating that sex trafficking 
training be provided to all public school personnel; and 

WHEREAS, the Pitt County Coalition Against Human Trafficking seeks to eradicate human 
trafficking by empowering organizations and individuals through collaboration, leadership, and training; and 

WHEREAS, the Pitt County Sheriff’s Office, the Pitt County Department of Social Services, Pitt 
County Schools and many other organizations are active members of the Pitt County Coalition Against 
Human Trafficking; and 

WHEREAS, the Town of Winterville is committed to protecting people vulnerable to human 
trafficking and taking action to end human trafficking through prevention, prosecution, and partnerships. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I, do hereby proclaim January 2021 as “Human Trafficking Awareness 
and Prevention Month”, and commend its observance to all citizens and set my hand, and cause the seal of 
Winterville to be affixed this 11th day of January 2021. 

 
 
 
 
   
 Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
 
 
 
  
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

4



TOWN OF WINTERVILLE 
PUBLIC COMMENT APPLICATION 

 

 

 

 

Description of the item(s) to be presented to the Town Council Members. Please be specific. 

 

Name(s) of Speaker(s): 

(1)______________________________________________________________________________________ 

(2)______________________________________________________________________________________ 

(3)______________________________________________________________________________________ 

My signature below acknowledges that I have read the Town of Winterville Public Comment Policy.  
I agree that as applicant, the speaker(s) named above shall adhere to the Public Comment Policy of the 
Town of Winterville. 
 

  
Signature 

Name of Applicant:______________________________________  Date:________________ 

Address:_______________________________________________  Phone:_______________ 

Town Council Meeting Date Requesting to Provide Comment: 

___________________________________ 

 

5

Shantel Hawkins
Shantel Hawkins

Shantel Hawkins
  1/11/21

Shantel Hawkins
2456 Mill Street

Shantel Hawkins
252-327-0399

Shantel Hawkins
A continued request for Town Forum to address concerns about the reality of systemic racism, inequities and disconnect within the country and the Town of Winterville, NC.   

Shantel Hawkins
Ms. Shantel Hawkins

Shantel Hawkins
Ms. Shantel Hawkins

Shantel Hawkins
January 11, 2021



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date: January 11, 2021 

Presenter: Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Council Meeting Minutes. 

Action Requested: Approval of Minutes. 

Attachment: Draft Minutes of the Council meeting listed below. 

Prepared By: Donald Harvey, Town Clerk Date: 1/5/2021 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 1/5/2021 ☒ TM: 1/7/2021 ☒ Final: tlp – 1/7/2021 

Supporting Documentation 

Approval of the following set of Council Meeting Minutes: 
 

• December 14, 2020 Regular Meeting Minutes. 

Budgetary Impact: NA. 

Recommendation: Approval of Minutes. 

 

6



 

Page 1 of 28 

 
 

WINTERVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 
MONDAY, DECEMBER 14, 2020 – 7:00 PM 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
REMOTE VIA ZOOM 

 

The Winterville Town Council met in a Regular Meeting on the above date at 7:00 PM in the Town Hall 
Assembly Room, with Mayor Douglas A. Jackson presiding. The following were present: 

 
Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor (remote) 

Veronica W. Roberson Mayor Pro Tem 
Richard (Ricky) E. Hines, Councilman 

Tony P. Moore, Councilman 
Johnny Moye, Councilman (remote) 
Mark C. Smith, Councilman (remote 

Terri L. Parker, Town Manager 
Ben Williams, Assistant Town Manager 

Ryan Willhite, Police Chief 
David Moore, Fire Chief 

Robert Sutton, Electric Director 
Anthony Bowers, Finance Director 

Evan Johnston, Parks and Recreation Director 
Bryan Jones, Planning Director 

Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 
 
CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Jackson called the meeting to order. 
 
INVOCATION: Mayor Pro Tem Roberson gave the Invocation. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Mayor Jackson led everyone in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
WELCOME: Mayor Jackson welcomed the public. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
 
Manager Parker noted an amendment to the Agenda to add New Business item 5- Contract Construction 
Line Crew Assistance for New Electric Territory and Eli’s Ridge Subdivision. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Hines and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Roberson to approve the 
amended agenda. The poll vote results are as follows: Mayor Pro Tem Roberson, yes; 
Councilman Moye, yes; Councilman Smith, yes; Councilman Hines, yes; and Councilman 
Moore, yes. Motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
APPOINTMENT OF MAYOR PRO TEM: 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Roberson nominated Councilman Hines as Mayor Pro Tem. There were no other 
nominations. 

7



 

Page 2 of 28 

 
Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Roberson and seconded by Councilman Moore to appoint 
Ricky Hines as Mayor Pro Tem. The poll vote results are as follows: Mayor Pro Tem Roberson, 
yes; Councilman Moye, yes; Councilman Smith, yes; Councilman Hines, yes; and Councilman 
Moore, yes. Motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
PRESENTATIONS: 
 
2019-2020 Audit Report. Michael C. Jordan, CPA, Partner with Carr, Riggs &Ingram, LLC gave the 
following presentation: 
 

 
 

 
 

8



 

Page 3 of 28 

 
 

 
 

 

9



 

Page 4 of 28 

 
 

 
 

 

10



 

Page 5 of 28 

 
 

 
 

 

11



 

Page 6 of 28 

 
 

 
 

 

12



 

Page 7 of 28 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 
David Evans Property – Rezoning Request (Parcel 55092). Planning Director Jones gave the 
following presentation: 
 

 
 

 
 

13



 

Page 8 of 28 

 
 

 
 

 

14



 

Page 9 of 28 

 
 

 
 

 

15



 

Page 10 of 28 

 
 

 
 

 

16



 

Page 11 of 28 

 
 

 
 

 

17



 

Page 12 of 28 

Council and Staff discussed questions relating to the rezoning request. 
 
Mayor Jackson declared the public hearing open, asked if anyone would like to speak in favor of the 
rezoning request. Linwood Stroud with Stroud Engineering spoke in favor of the proposed rezoning. 
Mayor Jackson asked if anyone would like to speak in opposition of the rezoning request. There were 
none. Mayor Jackson asked for any further discussion or any more questions. Hearing none, Mayor 
Jackson closed the public hearing and asked what is the pleasure of the Board. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Roberson to approve the 
David Evans Property – Rezoning Request (Parcel 55092) - Ordinance No. 20-O-121, subject to 
the 24-hour comment period. The poll vote results are as follows: Mayor Pro Tem Roberson, 
yes; Councilman Moye, yes; Councilman Smith, yes; Councilman Hines, yes; and Councilman 
Moore, yes. Motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
*(Note to the minutes) No comments were received within 24 hours of the conclusion of the 
meeting, thus the motion on the David Evans Property – Rezoning Request (Parcel 55092) - 
Ordinance No. 20-O-121 is approved. 
 

18



 

Page 13 of 28 

 
 

19



 

Page 14 of 28 

 
 

20



 

Page 15 of 28 

Zoning Ordinance Amendments – Chapter 160D of the NC GS. Planning Director Jones gave the 
following presentation: 
 

 
 

 

21



 

Page 16 of 28 

 
 

 
 

 

22



 

Page 17 of 28 

Mayor Jackson declared the public hearing open, asked if anyone would like to speak in favor of the 

Amendments. There were none. Mayor Jackson asked if anyone would like to speak in opposition of 

the Amendments. There were none. Mayor Jackson asked for any further discussion or any more 

questions. Hearing what is the pleasure of the Board. 

 
Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Roberson and seconded by Councilman Hines to approve the 
Zoning Ordinance Amendments – Chapter 160D of the NC GS - Ordinance No. 20-O-122, subject 
to the 24-hour comment period. The poll vote results are as follows: Mayor Pro Tem Roberson, 
yes; Councilman Moye, yes; Councilman Smith, yes; Councilman Hines, yes; and Councilman 
Moore, yes. Motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
*(Note to the minutes) No comments were received within 24 hours of the conclusion of the 
meeting, thus the motion on the Zoning Ordinance Amendments – Chapter 160D of the NC GS - 
Ordinance No. 20-O-122 is approved. 
 
Excerpt of Ordinance No. 20-O-122 shown below: 

23



 

Page 18 of 28 

 
 

24



 

Page 19 of 28 

 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS: None 
 
CONSENT AGENDA:  
 
Items included in the Consent Agenda: 
 
1. Approval of the following set of Council Meeting Minutes: 

➢ November 9, 2020 Regular Meeting Minutes. 
 
2. Approval of 2021 Calendars: 

➢ 2021 Regular Council Meeting Calendar; and 
➢ 2021-2022 Budget Calendar. 

 
3. Designation of Applicants Agent for Hurricane Isaias. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Hines and seconded by Councilman Moore to approve the consent 
agenda. The poll vote results are as follows: Mayor Pro Tem Roberson, yes; Councilman Moye, 
yes; Councilman Smith, yes; Councilman Hines, yes; and Councilman Moore, yes. Motion 
carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
OLD BUSINESS: 
 
Taxicab Final Approval. Police Chief Willhite commented as required by ordinance, the Police 
Department had conducted an investigation of the applicants for the taxicab franchise permit and 
conducted safety inspections of two (2) vehicles that will be used. He informed Council that All Dunn 
Transport had no concerning issues during the review. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Councilman Hines to give final approval for 
a Taxicab Franchise to All Dunn Transport. The poll vote results are as follows: Mayor Pro Tem 
Roberson, yes; Councilman Moye, yes; Councilman Smith, yes; Councilman Hines, yes; and 
Councilman Moore, yes. Motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 

25



 

Page 20 of 28 

NEW BUSINESS: 
 
Board of Adjustment Member Appointments. Planning Director Jones noted that The Board of 
Adjustment (BOA) consists of five (5) Members; four (4) members of the board are appointed by the 
Town Council and shall be residents of the Town of Winterville, and one (1) member is appointed by the 
Board of County Commissioners of Pitt County, all for overlapping terms of three years. The BOA also 
consists of one (1) regular alternate member and one (1) alternate ETJ member. Mr. Brian Miller is 
currently designated as an Alternate Regular Member. With the resignation of a Regular Member, Mr. 
Miller would now be moved to a Regular Member and would leave the Regular Member Alternate position 
vacant. The Town Clerk currently has two (2) applications on file requesting to be appointed to the Board. 
The applicants are as follows in order of receipt: Garret Killian and Brandy Daniels. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Hines and seconded by Councilman Moore to approve Brian Miller 
as a Member to the Board of Adjustment. The poll vote results are as follows: Mayor Pro Tem 
Roberson, yes; Councilman Moye, yes; Councilman Smith, yes; Councilman Hines, yes; and 
Councilman Moore, yes. Motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Hines and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Roberson to approve Garret 
Killian as an Alternate Member to the Board of Adjustment. The poll vote results are as follows: 
Mayor Pro Tem Roberson, yes; Councilman Moye, yes; Councilman Smith, yes; Councilman 
Hines, yes; and Councilman Moore, yes. Motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
NCLM Voting Delegate for the New Legislative Biennium. Clerk Harvey noted that Council needs to 
designate the Town's Voting Delegate for the start of the new legislative biennium. During even-
numbered years, members come together to submit their legislative goals and priorities. Each member 
municipality is eligible to cast a single vote in this goal setting process. Each member municipality shall 
designate one voting delegate who is responsible for casting the municipality's vote. 
 
Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Roberson and seconded by Councilman Hines to appoint 
Councilman Moore as the voting delegate for the NCLM New Legislative Biennium. The poll vote 
results are as follows: Mayor Pro Tem Roberson, yes; Councilman Moye, yes; Councilman Smith, 
yes; Councilman Hines, yes; and Councilman Moore, yes. Motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
Approval of Financing Terms and Agreement with Branch Bank and Trust. Finance Director Bowers 
noted that the Town Council had approved the purchase of three pieces of Public Works equipment, one 
(1) vehicle for the Finance Department and new ERP Software. The funding for the Public Works 
equipment was approved in last Fiscal Year’s budget in the amount of $611,000. The Council also 
approved the purchase of an SUV in the 2020-2021 budget in the amount of $26,000. The funds approved 
for the financing of the software was $496,000. Quotes were received from 4 Lending institutions. BB&T 
(Trust) was the lowest bid, with rates at 1.92%, 1.58%, and 1.92% respectively. Historically the Town has 
not financed vehicles and equipment over seven (7) years. Staff recommends accepting BB&T’s proposal 
for all three (3) pieces of equipment with the seven (7)-year term for the Equipment, a three (3)-year term 
for the SUV, and a seven (7)-year term for the ERP Software. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Councilman Hines to approve BB&T to 
finance items as recommended by the Finance Director and adopt Resolution Nos. 20-R-121, 20-
R-122, and 20-R-123. The poll vote results are as follows: Mayor Pro Tem Roberson, yes; 
Councilman Moye, yes; Councilman Smith, yes; Councilman Hines, yes; and Councilman Moore, 
yes. Motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 

26



 

Page 21 of 28 

 
 

27



 

Page 22 of 28 

 
 

28



 

Page 23 of 28 

 
 

29



 

Page 24 of 28 

Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation 2019. Assistant Town Manager Williams noted that in 2018, the Town 
applied for funding assistance for collection system rehabilitation. In January 2019, the NC Department 
of Environmental Quality (NCDEQ) Division of Water Infrastructure (DWI) reviewed the funding 
application and approved the Town of Winterville for loan assistance from the Clean Water State 
Revolving Fund (CWSRF) in the amount of $3,532,000 with $500,000 in principal forgiveness. The 
original estimated loan amount for the project was $3,032,200, with a term of twenty (20) years and an 
interest rate of 0%. Engineering design fees, including inspection and construction administration 
services, total $422,750. Bids were opened on Tuesday November 17, 2020. The lowest responsible 
bidder was North American Pipeline Management, Inc., with a low bid of $3,076,961. The lowest bid was 
9.7% higher than the original construction estimate. The Town has requested additional funding for the 
project in the amount of $190,829.03. This requested amount is based on the revised project budget 
reflecting the received bid price and construction contingency. This requested increase will bring the total 
loan amount to $3,223,029.03 and the total project cost of $3,723,029.03 not including closing costs 
($74,460). 100% of this project including all engineering fees and construction costs will be covered by 
the loan/grant that the Town received. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Hines and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Roberson to award the 
contract to North American Pipeline Management, Inc. and adopt Resolution No. 20-R-124. The 
poll vote results are as follows: Mayor Pro Tem Roberson, yes; Councilman Moye, yes; 
Councilman Smith, yes; Councilman Hines, yes; and Councilman Moore, yes. Motion carried 
unanimously, 5-0. 
 

30



 

Page 25 of 28 

 
 

31



 

Page 26 of 28 

Contract Construction Line Crew Assistance for New Electric Territory and Eli’s Ridge 
Subdivision. Electric Director Sutton noted that the Town’s electric territory, through an agreement with 
Greenville Utilities Commission, has expanded into areas that will require the installation of new electric 
infrastructure. The installation of backbone electric infrastructure into these areas requires the installation 
of large quantities of electric conductor. Staff has recently installed the majority of the required pipe that 
houses the electrical conductors in the Eli’s Ridge Subdivision area. The installation of conductor is now 
needed. This will require additional labor and staffing, experienced in this type of construction, for the 
timely completion of the project. The Town contacted three construction companies for bids. Two 
companies submitted labor bids while the third declined due to not being able to meet the labor needs 
for the job. Staff recommends approval of the contract for the installation of Underground/Overhead 
conductor and appurtenances with River City Construction at a rate of $185 per crew hour. 
 

 
 
Motion made by Councilman Hines and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Roberson to approve the 
contract with River City Construction. The poll vote results are as follows: Mayor Pro Tem 
Roberson, yes; Councilman Moye, yes; Councilman Smith, yes; Councilman Hines, yes; and 
Councilman Moore, yes. Motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
OTHER AGENDA ITEMS: 
 
Council and Staff discussed items relating to the NCDOT priority list, community action assistance 
agencies including HOPE and Green Lamp, code enforcement houses, and the multi-family development 
at the end of Depot Street. 
 
ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDA/FUTURE WORK SESSIONS: 
 
None. 
 

32



 

Page 27 of 28 

REPORTS FROM DEPARTMENT HEADS: 
 
❖ Minimum Housing/Code Enforcement (TLP) 
❖ Tar Road Widening Project – Electric Engineering/Relocation (RS) 
❖ New Electric Territory Engineering/Installation (RS) 
❖ Fork Swamp Greenway Project (EJ) 
❖ Multi-Purpose Building Site Plan (EJ) 
❖ Winterville Market/Town Common Plan (BW) 
❖ Chapman Street Culvert - Nobel Canal Drainage Basin Study (BW) 
❖ 2018 Sewer Rehab (BW) 
❖ Cemetery (BW) 
 
Council and Staff discussed items relating to Multi-Purpose Building site, Cemetery expansion 
plans, and Nobel Canal. 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS: Town Clerk Harvey gave the following announcements. 
 
1. Planning and Zoning Board Meeting: Monday, December 21, 2020 - 7 pm at Town Hall Assembly 

Room. 
2. Board of Adjustment Meeting: Tuesday, December 22, 2020 - 7 pm at Town Hall Assembly Room. 
3. Christmas Holidays: Thursday, December 24th, Friday, December 25th, and Monday, December 

28th, Town Offices Closed. 
4. New Year’s Day: Friday, January 1, 2021, Town Offices Closed. 
 
Town Manager Parker discussed keeping Town Offices closed due to the increased problems with the 
COVID situation. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Hines and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Roberson to keep Town 
Offices closed to the public through January 1, 2021. The poll vote results are as follows: Mayor 
Pro Tem Roberson, yes; Councilman Moye, yes; Councilman Smith, yes; Councilman Hines, yes; 
and Councilman Moore, yes. Motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
REPORTS FROM THE TOWN ATTORNEY, MAYOR, AND TOWN COUNCIL, AND TOWN MANAGER: 
 
Councilman Hines: Welcome back Mayor Jackson. Thanks for vote of confidence for Mayor Pro Tem. 
Wished everyone a Merry Christmas and to stay safe. 
 
Councilman Moye: Welcome back Mayor Jackson and Merry Christmas to everyone. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Roberson: Wish everyone a Merry Christmas and Happy New Year. Thanks to Staff 
and citizens to keep things rolling during this time. Thanks to the article in Winterville Magazine. 
 
Councilman Smith: Welcome back to Mayor Jackson. Congratulations to Councilman Hines on 
appointment as Mayor Pro Tem. Wish everyone a Merry Christmas. Asked everyone to keep Councilman 
Moore’s wife in their prayers. 
 
Councilman Moore: Merry Christmas and thanks to everyone. 
 
Mayor Jackson: Thanks to everyone for their help and prayers during his time in rehab. He said he is 
proud of our Town and Merry Christmas and Safe Holiday. 
 
Manager Parker: Thanks to all for their help during the challenges presented this year, and Merry 
Christmas to everyone. 
 

33



 

Page 28 of 28 

ADJOURN: 
 
Motion made by Councilman Hines and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Roberson to adjourn the 
meeting. The poll vote results are as follows: Mayor Pro Tem Roberson, yes; Councilman Moye, 
yes; Councilman Smith, yes; Councilman Hines, yes; and Councilman Moore, yes. Motion carried 
unanimously, 5-0. Meeting adjourned at 9:11 pm. 
 
 

Adopted this the 11th day of January 2021. 
 
 
 
 
   
 Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
  
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

34



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date: January 11, 2021 

Presenter: Bryan Jones, Planning Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Eli’s Ridge, Phases 1 and 3 (Storm Water Detention Area) – Annexation. 

Action Requested: Direct Town Clerk to Investigate the Sufficiency of Annexation. 

Attachment: Annexation Petition, Annexation Map, Legal Description, Certification of Sufficiency Resolution, 
Draft Certification of Sufficiency. 

Prepared By: Bryan Jones, Planning Director Date: 1/5/2021 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 1/5/2021 ☒ TM: 1/7/2021 ☒ Final: tlp - 1/7/2021 

Supporting Documentation 

The property owner of a portion of Parcel 25777 (Eli’s Ridge, Phases 1 and 3, Storm Water Detention Area) 

is applying for annexation into the Town limits. 

 

Eli’s Ridge, Phases 1 and 3: 

Location: Worthington Road east of its intersection with Old Tar Road. 

Size: 10.03 Acres. 

Zoned: R-10. 

 

 

Annexation Process: 

1st Council Meeting: Direct Town Clerk to Investigate the Sufficiency of the Annexation (1/11/21). 

2nd Council Meeting: Schedule a Public Hearing for the Annexation (2/8/21). 

3rd Council Meeting: Hold Public Hearing on the Annexation (3/8/21). 

Budgetary Impact: TBD. 

Recommendation: Direct Town Clerk to Investigate Sufficiency. 

 

35



36



37



38



 

 

Resolution No. 21-R-011 
 
 

RESOLUTION DIRECTING THE TOWN CLERK TO INVESTIGATE 
A PETITION RECEIVED UNDER NCGS 160A-31 

 
 

Eli’s Ridge, Phases 1 and 3 (Storm Water Detention Area) – Annexation 
 
 

WHEREAS, a petition requesting annexation of an area described in said petition were 
received on December 22, 2020 by the Town Council; and 
 

WHEREAS, NCGS 160A-31 provides that the sufficiency of the petition shall be 
investigated by the Town Clerk before further annexation proceedings may take place; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Town Council of the Town of Winterville seems it advisable to proceed in 
response to this request for annexation. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Town Council of the Town of Winterville 
that: 
 
The Town Clerk is hereby directed to investigate the sufficiency of the above-described petition 
and to certify as soon as possible to the Town Council the result of the investigation. 
 
 
 Adopted this the 11th day of January 2021. 
 
 
 
   
 Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
  
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

39



 

 

CERTIFICATE OF SUFFICIENCY 

 

Eli’s Ridge, Phases 1 and 3 (Storm Water Detention Area) – Annexation 

 

To the Town Council of the Town of Winterville, North Carolina: 

 

 I, Donald Harvey, Town Clerk, do hereby certify that I have investigated the petition 

attached hereto and have found as a fact that said petition is signed by all owners of real property 

lying in the area described herein, in accordance with NCGS 160A-58.1. 

 

 In witness whereof, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of the Town of 

Winterville this the 12th day of January 2021. 

 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
   

 Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

40



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: New Business 

 

Meeting Date: January 11, 2021 

Presenter: Anthony Bowers, Finance Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Audit Contract for fiscal year 2020 – 2021. 

Action Requested: Approve the Audit Contract with Carr, Riggs, and Ingram, LLC. 

Attachment: Contract and Engagement Letter. 

Prepared By: Anthony Bowers, Finance Director Date: 1/5/2021 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 1/5/2021 ☒ TM: 1/7/2021 ☒ Final: tlp - 1/7/2021 

Supporting Documentation 

Each year the Town Council must approve the contract with the audit firm that it uses for its independent 

review of the Town’s Finances. We are recommending that we use CRI out of Goldsboro. This will be the 

fourth full year for the Goldsboro team. Mr. Jordan and his staff are highly recognized in the State, and are 

used to review other audits in the State. 

Budgetary Impact: This is accounted for in the Operating Budget for the Finance Department. The value of 
the contract is $39,050. 

Recommendation: Approve the Contract. 

 

41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



 
 
January 5, 2021 
 
To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the Town Council 
And Anthony Bowers, Finance Officer 
Town of Winterville, North Carolina 

We are pleased  to confirm our understanding of  the services we are  to provide  the Town of Winterville, North 
Carolina (the “Town”) for the year ended June 30, 2021. 

Audit Scope and Objectives 

We will audit the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business‐type activities, each major fund, 
and the aggregate remaining fund information, and the disclosures, which collectively comprise the basic financial 
statements of the Town as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021.  Accounting standards generally accepted in the 
United  States  of  America  (GAAS)  provide  for  certain  required  supplementary  information  (RSI),  such  as 
management’s  discussion  and  analysis  (MD&A),  to  supplement  the  Town’s  basic  financial  statements.  Such 
information, although not a part of  the basic  financial  statements,  is  required by  the Governmental Accounting 
Standards  Board who  considers  it  to  be  an  essential  part  of  financial  reporting  for  placing  the  basic  financial 
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. As part of our engagement, we will apply 
certain  limited procedures  to  the Town’s RSI  in accordance with GAAS. These  limited procedures will consist of 
inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we 
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We will not express an opinion or provide any assurance 
on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion 
or provide any assurance. The following RSI is required by U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and 
will be subjected to certain limited procedures, but will not be audited:  

1) Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

2) Other Post‐employment Benefits’ Schedule of Changes in Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios 

3) Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement System’s Schedule of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension 
Liability (Asset) and Contributions 

4) Law Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation Allowance Schedules of the Changes in Total Pension Liability and 
Total Pension Liability as a Percentage of Covered Payroll 

We have also been engaged to report on supplementary information other than RSI that accompanies the Town’s 
financial statements. We will subject the following supplementary information to the auditing procedures applied 
in our audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to 
the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with GAAS, and we will provide 
an opinion on it in relation to the financial statements as a whole in a report combined with our auditor’s report on 
the financial statements: 

51



 

1) Schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards  

2) Individual Fund Statements, budgetary schedules and other financial information 

In connection with our audit of the basic  financial statements, we will read the following other  information and 
consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the basic financial statements, 
or  the  other  information  otherwise  appears  to  be materially misstated.  If,  based  on  the work  performed, we 
conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other information exists, we are required to describe it 
in our report.  

1) Statistical schedules/tables for Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR). 

2) Non‐required supplementary information from internal purposes. (Introductory Info) 

With regard to this other information included within your CAFR,  

 The auditor has the expectation that it will be provided the final version of all documents comprising the 
annual report, including other information, prior to the date of the auditor’s report so that required audit 
procedures can be completed prior to the issuance of the auditor’s report. 

 If obtaining the final version of these documents is not possible prior to the date of the auditor’s report, 
that the documents will be provided as soon as practicable, and that the entity will not issue the annual 
report prior to providing them to the auditor. 

 The potential implications of providing the documents after the date of the auditor’s report, including any 
actions that may be necessary in the event the auditor concludes that there is a material misstatement. 

The objectives of our audit are to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion 
about whether your financial statements are fairly presented, in all material respects, in conformity with GAAP; and 
report on the fairness of the supplementary information referred to in the second paragraph when considered in 
relation to the financial statements as a whole. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute 
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect a 
material misstatement when  it exists. Misstatements,  including omissions, can arise  from  fraud or error and are 
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the 
judgment of a reasonable user made based on the financial statements.  The objective also includes reporting on— 

 Internal control over financial reporting and compliance with provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
award agreements, noncompliance with which could have a material effect on the financial statements in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards. 

 Internal control over compliance related to major programs and an opinion (or disclaimer of opinion) on 
compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of federal awards that could 
have  a  direct  and  material  effect  on  each  major  program  in  accordance  with  the  Single  Audit  Act 
Amendments of 1996 and Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements  for Federal Awards  (Uniform Guidance) and  the 
State Single Audit Implementation Act. 

The Government Auditing Standards report on internal control over financial reporting and on compliance and other 
matters will  include a paragraph that states that  (1) the purpose of the report  is solely to describe the scope of 
testing of  internal control and compliance and  the  results of  that  testing, and not  to provide an opinion on  the 
effectiveness of  the entity’s  internal control or on compliance, and  (2)  the  report  is an  integral part of an audit 
performed  in  accordance with Government  Auditing  Standards  in  considering  the  entity’s  internal  control  and 
compliance. The Uniform Guidance report on internal control over compliance will include a paragraph that states 
that the purpose of the report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of testing of internal 
control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Both 
reports will state that the report is not suitable for any other purpose.  

52



 

Our  audit will  be  conducted  in  accordance with  auditing  standards  generally  accepted  in  the United  States  of 
America; the standards for financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States; the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996; the provisions of the Uniform Guidance and 
the State Single Audit Implementation Act, and will include tests of accounting records, a determination of major 
program(s) in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, and other procedures we consider necessary to enable us to 
express  such opinions. We will  issue written  reports  upon  completion  of  our  Single Audit. Our  reports will  be 
addressed to the Board of Commissioners of the Town. We cannot provide assurance that unmodified opinions will 
be expressed. Circumstances may arise in which it is necessary for us to modify our opinions or add emphasis‐of‐
matter or other‐matter paragraphs. If our opinions are other than unmodified, we will discuss the reasons with you 
in advance.  If,  for any  reason, we are unable  to  complete  the audit or are unable  to  form or have not  formed 
opinions, we may decline to express opinions or issue reports, or we may withdraw from this engagement.  

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

We will conduct our audit  in accordance with GAAS and will  include  tests of your accounting records and other 
procedures we consider necessary to enable us to express such opinions. As part of an audit  in accordance with 
GAAS, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

We will evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made  by management. We  will  also  evaluate  the  overall  presentation  of  the  financial  statements, 
including the disclosures, and determine whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions 
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. We will plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether from (1) errors, (2) 
fraudulent financial reporting, (3) misappropriation of assets, or (4) violations of laws or governmental regulations 
that are attributable to the government or to acts by management or employees acting on behalf of the government.  
Because the determination of waste and abuse is subjective, Government Auditing Standards do not expect auditors 
to perform specific procedures to detect waste or abuse in financial audits nor do they expect auditors to provide 
reasonable assurance of detecting waste or abuse. 

Because of  the  inherent  limitations of an audit, combined with  the  inherent  limitations of  internal control, and 
because we will not perform a detailed examination of all transactions, an unavoidable risk exists that some material 
misstatements or noncompliance may exist and not be detected by us, even though the audit is properly planned 
and performed in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards. In addition, an audit is not designed 
to detect immaterial misstatements or violations of laws or governmental regulations that do not have a direct and 
material effect on the financial statements or on major programs. However, we will inform the appropriate level of 
management of any material errors, any fraudulent financial reporting, or misappropriation of assets that come to 
our attention. We will also inform the appropriate level of management of any violations of laws or governmental 
regulations that come to our attention, unless clearly inconsequential.  We will include such matters in the reports 
required for a Single Audit.  Our responsibility as auditors is limited to the period covered by our audit and does not 
extend to any later periods for which we are not engaged as auditors. 

We will also conclude, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether there are conditions or events, considered in 
the aggregate,  that  raise  substantial doubt about  the government’s ability  to continue as a going concern  for a 
reasonable period of time. 

Our procedures will include tests of documentary evidence supporting the transactions recorded in the accounts, 
tests of the physical existence of inventories, and direct confirmation of receivables and certain assets and liabilities 
by  correspondence with  selected  customers,  creditors,  and  financial  institutions. We will  also  request written 
representations from your attorneys as part of the engagement and they may bill you for responding to this inquiry.  

At the conclusion of our audit, we will require certain written representations from you about your responsibilities 
for  the  financial  statements;  schedule  of  expenditures  of  federal  and  state  awards;  federal  and  state  award 
programs; compliance with laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements; and other responsibilities required 
by generally accepted auditing standards. 

53



 

Audit Procedures—Internal Control 

We will obtain an understanding of the government and its environment, including internal control relevant to the 
audit, sufficient to identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 
to error or fraud, and to design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks and obtain evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinions. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentation, or the override of internal control. An audit is not designed to provide assurance on 
internal control or to identify deficiencies in internal control. Accordingly, we will express no such opinion. However, 
during the audit, we will communicate to management and those charged with governance internal control related 
matters that are required to be communicated under AICPA professional standards.   

We have identified the following significant risks of material misstatement as part of our audit planning: 

 Improper recognition of revenue due to fraud – Following the guidance of Statement on Auditing Standards 
No. 99, this risk is classified as a presumptive fraud risk due to the potential for material misstatement of 
the financial statements.  

 Management override of controls ‐ Following the guidance of Statement on Auditing Standards No. 99, this 
risk is classified as a presumptive fraud risk due to the potential for material misstatement of the financial 
statements. 

As  our  audit  planning  has  not  concluded,  there  may  be  modifications  to  the  above  identified  risks.  Should 
modifications become necessary, we will communicate these to you in a timely manner, in writing. 

Test  of  controls may  be  performed  to  test  the  effectiveness  of  certain  controls  that we  consider  relevant  to 
preventing  and detecting  errors  and  fraud  that  are material  to  the  financial  statements  and have  a direct  and 
material effect on the financial statements. Our tests, if performed, will be less in scope than would be necessary to 
render an opinion on internal control and, accordingly, no opinion will be expressed in our report on internal control 
issued pursuant to Government Auditing Standards. 

As required by the Uniform Guidance, we will perform tests of controls over compliance to evaluate the effectiveness 
of the design and operation of controls that we consider relevant to preventing or detecting material noncompliance 
with compliance requirements applicable to each major federal award program. However, our tests will be less in 
scope than would be necessary to render an opinion on those controls and, accordingly, no opinion will be expressed 
in our report on internal control issued pursuant to the Uniform Guidance. 

An audit is not designed to provide assurance on internal control or to identify significant deficiencies or material 
weaknesses. Accordingly, we will express no  such opinion. However, during  the audit, we will  communicate  to 
management  and  those  charged  with  governance  internal  control  related  matters  that  are  required  to  be 
communicated under AICPA professional standards, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance.  

Audit Procedures—Compliance 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, 
we will perform  tests of  the  Town’s  compliance with provisions of  applicable  laws,  regulations,  contracts,  and 
agreements,  including grant agreements. However,  the objective of  those procedures will not be  to provide an 
opinion on overall compliance and we will not express such an opinion in our report on compliance issued pursuant 
to Government Auditing Standards. 

The Uniform Guidance  requires  that we also plan and perform  the audit  to obtain  reasonable assurance about 
whether  the auditee has complied with  federal and state statutes, regulations, and  the  terms and conditions of 
federal and state awards applicable to major programs. Our procedures will consist of tests of transactions and other 
applicable procedures described in the OMB Compliance Supplement for the types of compliance requirements that 
could have a direct and material effect on each of the Town’s major programs. For federal and state programs that 
are  included  in  the Compliance  Supplement, our  compliance  and  internal  control procedures will  relate  to  the 
compliance requirements that the Compliance Supplement identifies as being subject to audit. The purpose of these 

54



 

procedures will be to express an opinion on the Town’s compliance with requirements applicable to each of its major 
programs in our report on compliance issued pursuant to the Uniform Guidance. 

Other Services  

We will also assist in preparing the financial statements, the schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards, 
Data Collection Form (DCF), Annual Financial Information Report (AFIR), assisting in recording adjustments related 
to the Town’s pensions and other post‐employment benefit plans, assistance in converting modified accrual financial 
statements to full‐accrual financial statements (GASB 34 conversion) and related notes of the Town in conformity 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and the Uniform Guidance based on 
information  provided  by  you.  These  nonaudit  services  do  not  constitute  an  audit  under Government  Auditing 
Standards and such services will not be conducted in accordance with Government Auditing Standards. 

We will perform the services in accordance with applicable professional standards. The other services are limited to 
the financial statement, schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards, Data Collection Form (DCF), Annual 
Financial  Information Report (AFIR), assisting  in recording adjustments related to the Town’s pensions and other 
post‐employment  benefit  plans,  assistance  in  converting modified  accrual  financial  statements  to  full‐accrual 
financial statements (GASB 34 conversion) and related notes services previously defined. We, in our sole professional 
judgment,  reserve  the  right  to  refuse  to perform any procedure or  take any action  that  could be  construed as 
assuming management responsibilities. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

Our audit will be conducted on the basis that you acknowledge and understand your responsibility for (1) designing, 
implementing, establishing, and maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of 
financial statements that are  free  from material misstatement, whether due to  fraud or error,  including  internal 
controls over federal and state awards, and for evaluating and monitoring ongoing activities to help ensure that 
appropriate goals and objectives are met; (2) following laws and regulations; (3) ensuring that there is reasonable 
assurance  that  government  programs  are  administered  in  compliance with  compliance  requirements;  and  (4) 
ensuring  that  management  and  financial  information  is  reliable  and  properly  reported. Management  is  also 
responsible for implementing systems designed to achieve compliance with applicable laws, regulations, contracts, 
and grant agreements. You are also responsible for the selection and application of accounting principles; for the 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements, schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards, 
and  all  accompanying  information  in  conformity  with  U.S.  generally  accepted  accounting  principles;  and  for 
compliance with applicable laws and regulations (including federal and state statutes) and the provisions of contracts 
and  grant  agreements  (including  award  agreements).  Your  responsibilities  also  include  identifying  significant 
contractor relationships in which the contractor has responsibility for program compliance and for the accuracy and 
completeness of that information. 

Management is responsible for making drafts of financial statements, all financial records, and related information 
available to us and for the accuracy and completeness of that information (including information from outside of 
the general and subsidiary ledgers). You are also responsible for providing us with (1) access to all information of 
which you are aware that is relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements, such as 
records, documentation, identification of all related parties and all related‐party relationships and transactions, and 
other matters; (2) access to personnel, accounts, books, records, supporting documentation, and other information 
as needed to perform an audit under the Uniform Guidance, (3) additional information that we may request for the 
purpose of the audit, and (4) unrestricted access to persons within the government from whom we determine  it 
necessary to obtain audit evidence. At the conclusion of our audit, we will require certain written representations 
from you about the financial statements and related matters. 

Your responsibilities include adjusting the financial statements to correct material misstatements and confirming to 
us  in the management representation  letter that the effects of any uncorrected misstatements aggregated by us 
during the current engagement and pertaining to the latest period presented are immaterial, both individually and 
in the aggregate, to the financial statements of each opinion unit taken as a whole. 

You are responsible for the design and implementation of programs and controls to prevent and detect fraud, and 
for  informing  us  about  all  known  or  suspected  fraud  affecting  the  government  involving  (1) management,  (2) 

55



 

employees who have significant roles in internal control, and (3) others where the fraud could have a material effect 
on the financial statements. Your responsibilities include informing us of your knowledge of any allegations of fraud 
or  suspected  fraud  affecting  the  government  received  in  communications  from  employees,  former  employees, 
grantors, regulators, or others. In addition, you are responsible for  identifying and ensuring that the government 
complies with applicable laws, regulations, contracts, agreements, and grants. Management is also responsible for 
taking  timely  and  appropriate  steps  to  remedy  fraud  and  noncompliance with  provisions  of  laws,  regulations, 
contracts,  and  grant  agreements  that  we  report.  Additionally,  as  required  by  the  Uniform  Guidance,  it  is 
management’s  responsibility  to evaluate and monitor noncompliance with  federal statutes,  regulations, and  the 
terms  and  conditions  of  federal  awards;  take  prompt  action when  instances  of  noncompliance  are  identified 
including noncompliance identified in audit findings; promptly follow up and take corrective action on reported audit 
findings; and prepare a summary schedule of prior audit findings and a separate corrective action plan. The summary 
schedule of prior audit findings should be available for our review on July 15, 2021. 

You are responsible for identifying all federal and state awards received and understanding and complying with the 
compliance  requirements and  for  the preparation of  the  schedule of expenditures of  federal and  state  awards 
(including notes and noncash assistance received) in conformity with the Uniform Guidance. You agree to include 
our report on the schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards in any document that contains and indicates 
that we have reported on the schedule of expenditures of federal awards. You also agree to  include the audited 
financial statements with any presentation of the schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards that includes 
our report thereon. Your responsibilities include acknowledging to us in the written representation letter that (1) 
you are responsible for presentation of the schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards in accordance with 
the Uniform Guidance; (2) you believe the schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards, including its form 
and  content,  is  stated  fairly  in  accordance  with  the  Uniform  Guidance;  (3)  the methods  of measurement  or 
presentation have not changed from those used in the prior period (or, if they have changed, the reasons for such 
changes);  and  (4)  you  have  disclosed  to  us  any  significant  assumptions  or  interpretations  underlying  the 
measurement or presentation of the schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards. 

You are responsible for the preparation of the supplementary information in conformity with accounting principles 
generally  accepted  in  the  United  States  of  America.  You  agree  to  include  our  report  on  the  supplementary 
information in any document that contains, and indicates that we have reported on, the supplementary information. 
You also agree to include the audited financial statements with any presentation of the supplementary information 
that includes our report thereon. Your responsibilities include acknowledging to us in the representation letter that 
(1) you are responsible for presentation of the supplementary information in accordance with GAAP; (2) you believe 
the supplementary information, including its form and content, is fairly presented in accordance with GAAP; (3) the 
methods of measurement or presentation have not changed from those used in the prior period (or, if they have 
changed,  the  reasons  for  such  changes);  and  (4)  you  have  disclosed  to  us  any  significant  assumptions  or 
interpretations underlying the measurement or presentation of the supplementary information.  

With regard to publishing the financial statements on your website, you understand that websites are a means of 
distributing information and, therefore, we are not required to read the information contained in those sites or to 
consider the consistency of other information on the website with the original document.  

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining a process for tracking the status of audit findings and 
recommendations. Management is also responsible for identifying and providing report copies of previous financial 
audits, attestation engagements, performance audits, or other studies related  to  the objectives discussed  in  the 
Audit Objectives section of this letter. This responsibility includes relaying to us corrective actions taken to address 
significant  findings  and  recommendations  resulting  from  those  audits,  attestation  engagements,  performance 
audits, or studies. You are also responsible for providing management’s views on our current findings, conclusions, 
and recommendations, as well as your planned corrective actions, for the report, and for the timing and format for 
providing that information.  

With regard to the electronic dissemination of audited financial statements, including financial statements published 
electronically on your website, you understand  that electronic  sites are a means  to distribute  information and, 
therefore, we are not required to read the  information contained  in these sites or to consider the consistency of 
other information in the electronic site with the original document.  

56



 

You agree to assume all management responsibilities relating to the financial statements, schedule of expenditures 
of  federal and state awards, Data Collection Form  (DCF), Annual Financial  Information Report  (AFIR), assisting  in 
recording  adjustments  related  to  the  Town’s pensions  and other post‐employment benefit plans,  assistance  in 
converting modified accrual financial statements to full‐accrual financial statements (GASB 34 conversion), related 
notes,  and  any  other  nonaudit  services we  provide.  You will  be  required  to  acknowledge  in  the management 
representation letter our assistance with preparation of the financial statements, schedule of expenditures of federal 
and state awards, Data Collection Form  (DCF), Annual Financial  Information Report  (AFIR), assisting  in recording 
adjustments  related  to  the Town’s pensions and other post‐employment benefit plans, assistance  in converting 
modified accrual financial statements to full‐accrual financial statements (GASB 34 conversion), and related notes 
and that you have reviewed and approved the financial statements, schedule of expenditures of federal and state 
awards, and related notes prior to their issuance and have accepted responsibility for them. Further, you agree to 
oversee the nonaudit services by designating an individual, preferably from senior management, with suitable skill, 
knowledge, or experience; evaluate the adequacy and results of those services; and accept responsibility for them.  

In connection with this engagement, we may communicate with you or others via email transmission. As emails can 
be intercepted and read, disclosed, or otherwise used or communicated by an unintended third party, or may not 
be delivered to each of the parties to whom they are directed and only to such parties, we cannot guarantee or 
warrant that emails from us will be properly delivered and read only by the addressee. Therefore, we specifically 
disclaim and waive any liability or responsibility whatsoever for interception or unintentional disclosure of emails 
transmitted by us in connection with the performance of this engagement. In that regard, you agree that we shall 
have no  liability  for any  loss or damage  to  any person or entity  resulting  from  the use of email  transmissions, 
including any consequential, incidental, direct, indirect, or special damages, such as loss of revenues or anticipated 
profits, or disclosure or communication of confidential or proprietary information. 

Engagement Administration, Fees, and Other  

We understand that your employees will prepare all cash, accounts receivable, or other confirmations and schedules 
we request and will locate any documents selected by us for testing.  We will schedule the engagement based in part 
on deadlines, working conditions, and the availability of your key personnel. We will plan the engagement based on 
the assumption that your personnel will cooperate and provide assistance by performing tasks such as preparing 
requested schedules, retrieving supporting documents, and preparing confirmations. If, for whatever reason, your 
personnel are unavailable to provide the necessary assistance in a timely manner, it may substantially increase the 
work we have to do to complete the engagement within the established deadlines, resulting in an increase in fees 
over our original fee estimate. 

You may request that we perform additional services not addressed in this engagement letter. If this occurs, we will 
communicate with you regarding the scope of the additional services and the estimated fees. We also may issue a 
separate engagement  letter covering the additional services. In the absence of any other written communication 
from  us  documenting  such  additional  services,  our  services will  continue  to  be  governed  by  the  terms  of  this 
engagement letter. 

At the conclusion of the engagement, we will complete the appropriate sections of the Data Collection Form that 
summarizes our audit  findings.  It  is management’s  responsibility  to electronically  submit  the  reporting package 
(including financial statements, schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards, summary schedule of prior 
audit findings, auditor’s reports, and corrective action plan) along with the Data Collection Form to the federal audit 
clearinghouse. We will coordinate with you the electronic submission and certification. The Data Collection Form 
and the reporting package must be submitted within the earlier of 30 calendar days after receipt of the auditor’s 
reports or nine months after the end of the audit period. 

We will provide copies of our  reports  to  the Town; however, management  is  responsible  for distribution of  the 
reports and the financial statements. Unless restricted by law or regulation, or containing privileged and confidential 
information, copies of our reports are to be made available for public inspection. 

The  audit  documentation  for  this  engagement  is  the  property  of  Carr,  Riggs  &  Ingram,  LLC  and  constitutes 
confidential information. However, subject to applicable laws and regulations, audit documentation and appropriate 
individuals will be made available upon request and in a timely manner to the federal or state oversight body or its 

57



 

designee, a federal or state agency providing direct or indirect funding, or the U.S. Government Accountability Office 
for purposes of a quality review of the audit, to resolve audit findings, or to carry out oversight responsibilities. We 
will notify you of any such request.  If requested, access to such audit documentation will be provided under the 
supervision of Carr, Riggs & Ingram, LLC personnel. Furthermore, upon request, we may provide copies of selected 
audit documentation to the aforementioned parties.  These parties may intend or decide to distribute the copies or 
information contained therein to others, including other governmental agencies.  

The audit documentation for this engagement will be retained for a minimum of seven years after the report release 
date or for any additional period requested by a federal or state Cognizant Agency or, Oversight Agency for Audit, 
or Pass‐through Entity. If we are aware that a federal or state awarding agency, pass‐through entity, or auditee is 
contesting an audit finding, we will contact the party(ies) contesting the audit finding for guidance prior to destroying 
the audit documentation. 

Michael C.  Jordan  is the engagement partner and  is responsible  for supervising the engagement and signing the 
report or authorizing another individual to sign it. We expect to begin our audit on approximately May 1, 2021 and 
to issue our reports no later than October 31, 2021. 

Our fee for services will be at our standard hourly rates plus out‐of‐pocket costs (such as report reproduction, word 
processing, postage, travel, copies, telephone, etc.) except that we agree that our gross fee, including expenses, will 
not  exceed  $39,565  as  stipulated  in  the  Local  Government  Contract.  The  above  fee  is  based  on  anticipated 
cooperation from your personnel and the assumption that unexpected circumstances will not be encountered during 
the audit.  If significant additional time  is necessary, we will discuss  it with you and arrive at a new  fee estimate 
before we incur the additional costs. 

Reporting 

We will issue a written report upon completion of our audit of the Town’s financial statements . Our report will be 
addressed to Board of Commissioners of the Town. Circumstances may arise in which our report may differ from its 
expected form and content based on the results of our audit. Depending on the nature of these circumstances, it 
may be necessary for us to modify our opinions or add an emphasis‐of‐matter or other‐matter paragraph to our 
auditor’s report, or if necessary, withdraw from this engagement. If our opinions are other than unmodified, we will 
discuss the reasons with you in advance. If, for any reason, we are unable to complete the audit or are unable to 
form or have not formed opinions, we may decline to express opinions or withdraw from this engagement.  

Dispute Resolution 

In the event of a dispute between the parties which arises out of or relates to this contract or engagement letter, 
the breach thereof or the services provided or to be provided hereunder, if the dispute cannot be settled through 
negotiation, the parties agree that before initiating arbitration, litigation or other dispute resolution procedure, they 
will first try, in good faith, to resolve the dispute through non‐binding mediation. All parties agree that an alternative 
form of dispute resolution shall not be undertaken by either party until the expiration of fifteen (15) calendar days 
following notice being provided to the other party indicating that the dispute cannot be settled through mediation. 
The mediation will be administered by the American Arbitration Association under its Dispute Resolution Rules for 
Professional Accounting and Related Services Disputes. The  costs of any mediation proceedings  shall be  shared 
equally by all parties. 

Limitation of Liability 

Except  as  provided  in  this  agreement,  CRI  shall  not  be  liable  for  incidental,  consequential,  exemplary,  special, 
punitive or ancillary damages of any kind alleged as a result of any cause of action from this agreement, whether 
arising out of breach of contract, tort or otherwise.  Unless otherwise stated in this agreement, both CRI and you 
agree that the total cumulative liability of CRI (including its employees, directors, officers or agents), shall not exceed 
the amount of fees earned by CRI related to this engagement during the twelve months preceding the event giving 
rise to the claim, as such amount shall serve as a reasonable prospective estimate of any damages which you may 
suffer through any breach by CRI of the terms of this agreement, as such damages may be speculative or impossible 

58



 

to calculate. If there are unpaid fees owed to CRI, this cumulative liability will be reduced by the value of the unpaid 
fees with no additional interest or charges, as CRI retains the right to offset any sums claimed as due and owed by 
you, by  any  sums  to which  it  is  legally  entitled. This  limitation  shall  apply whether or not further damages  are 
foreseeable, or whether  either party  (or  its  employees,  agents, officers or directors) have been  advised of  the 
possibility of such damages. 

Governing Law; Venue 

This  agreement  and  performance  hereunder  shall  be  governed  by  the  laws  of  the  State  of  Alabama, without 
reference  to  any  conflict  of  laws  rules  or  principles.  Any  action  or  proceeding  arising  from  or  relating  to  this 
agreement must be brought in a state or federal court having jurisdiction in Coffee County, Alabama, and each party 
irrevocably submits to the jurisdiction and venue of any such court in any such action or proceeding and agrees to 
waive any defenses to venue and jurisdiction including forum non conveniens.  

Statute of Limitations 

The parties agree that there shall be a one‐year statute of limitation (from the delivery of the service or termination 
of the contract) for the filing of any requests for arbitration, lawsuit, or proceeding related to this agreement.  If such 
a claim is filed more than one year, or the minimum durational period having been determined as permissible by 
applicable  statutory  law  or  by  a  court  of  competent  jurisdiction,  subsequent  to  the  delivery  of  the  service  or 
termination of the contract, whichever occurs first in time, then it shall be precluded by this provision, regardless of 
whether or not the claim has accrued at that time. 

Electronic Data Communication and Storage and Use of Third Party Service Provider 

In  the  interest of  facilitating our services  to your company, we may send data over  the  Internet, securely store 
electronic data via computer software applications hosted remotely on the Internet, or allow access to data through 
third‐party  vendors’  secured  portals  or  clouds.  Electronic  data  that  is  confidential  to  your  company may  be 
transmitted or stored using these methods. We may use third‐party service providers to store or transmit this data, 
such as, but not  limited to, providers of tax return preparation software. In using these data communication and 
storage methods, our firm employs measures designed to maintain data security. We use reasonable efforts to keep 
such  communications  and  data  access  secure  in  accordance  with  our  obligations  under  applicable  laws  and 
professional standards. We also require our third‐party vendors to do the same. 

You  recognize  and  accept  that  we  have  no  control  over,  and  shall  not  be  responsible  for,  the  unauthorized 
interception or breach of any communications or data once it has been sent or has been subject to unauthorized 
access, notwithstanding all reasonable security measures employed by us or our third‐party vendors. You consent 
to our use of these electronic devices and applications and submission of confidential client information to third‐
party service providers during this engagement. 

To enhance our services to you, we will use a combination of remote access, secure  file transfer, virtual private 
network  or  other  collaborative,  virtual workspace  or  other  online  tools  or  environments.  Access  through  any 
combination of these tools allows for on‐demand and/or real‐time collaboration across geographic boundaries and 
time  zones  and  allows  CRI  and  you  to  share  data,  engagement  information,  knowledge,  and  deliverables  in  a 
protected environment. In order to use certain of these tools and in addition to execution of this acknowledgement 
and engagement letter, you may be required to execute a separate client acknowledgement or agreement and agree 
to be bound by the terms, conditions and limitations of such agreement. You agree that CRI has no responsibility for 
the activities of  its third‐party vendors supplying these tools and agree to  indemnify and hold CRI harmless with 
respect to any and all claims arising from or related to the operation of these tools. While we may back up your files 
to  facilitate  our  services,  you  are  solely  responsible  for  the  backup  of  your  files  and  records;  therefore,  we 
recommend that you also maintain your own backup files of these records. In the event you suffer a loss of any files 
or records due to accident, inadvertent mistake, or Act of God, copies of which you have provided to us pursuant to 
this agreement, we shall not be responsible or obligated to provide you a copy of any such file or record which we 
may retain in our possession. 

59



 

We appreciate  the opportunity  to be of  service  to  the Town and believe  this  letter accurately  summarizes  the 
significant terms of our engagement. If you have any questions, please let us know. If you agree with the terms of 
our engagement as described in this letter, please sign the attached copy and return it to us. Our audit engagement 
ends  on  delivery  of  our  audit  report.  Any  follow‐up  services  that might  be  required will  be  a  separate,  new 
engagement. The terms and conditions of that new engagement will be governed by a new, specific engagement 
letter for that service.  

Very truly yours, 
 

 
Carr, Riggs & Ingram, LLC 
 

This letter correctly sets forth the understanding of the Town of Winterville.  
 
Management signature:      
 
Title:      
 
Date:      
 
 
Governance signature:      
 
Title:      
 
Date:      
 

60



2571 Railroad Street 

PO Box 1459 

Winterville, NC 28590 

Phone: (252) 756-2221 

Fax: (252) 321-8455 

www.wintervillenc.com 

CERTIFIED MAIL 

January 11, 2021 

Josh Stein, North Carolina Attorney General 

North Carolina Department of Justice 

9001 Mail Service Center 

Raleigh. NC 27699-9001 

Re: Complaint Regarding Internet Service Provider – Suddenlink Communications/Altec USA 

(Suddenlink) 

Dear Mr. Stein: 

The purpose of this letter is to join some of our fellow cities and towns in eastern North Carolina and request that 

the North Carolina Attorney General’s Office initiate an investigation into the business practices of Suddenlink 

Communications/Altice USA (hereinafter referred to as Suddenlink). The Town of Winterville receives constant 

complaints regarding poor service and unfair business practices from this Provider. These complaints against 

Suddenlink include, but are not limited to escalating costs; excessively long and frequent outages; poor 

communication/response to said outages; failure to keep equipment in good working condition; “temporary” fixes 

resulting in exposed/low-hanging lines for extended periods of time; very slow internet speeds (lower than 

advertised or sold); poor customer service practices; and lack of availability to service. 

While many of these complaints span a multi-year period, the COVID-19 Pandemic has exposed the broad scope 

of the problems with both physical infrastructure and service delivery of Suddenlink. The combination of Stay-at-

Home orders, remote learning, and teleworking requirements during the Pandemic has brought about a larger-

scale reliance on internet service and specifically Suddenlink. Due to the continuing problems which Suddenlink 

has failed to address, Winterville citizens are frequently denied access to required information, remote education, 

and teleworking requirements. The Town seeks any assistance that your Office can provide to “force” 

improvement of this vital utility within our service area. For some time, Town Officials have directed citizens to 

report issues with Suddenlink known to your office. Town Officials will continue this practice so that the North 

Carolina Department of Justice may document the persistent and extensive service delivery issues with this 

Company. 

Thank you for your prompt attention to this matter. Please contact me at (252) 215-2344 or Terri L. Parker, Town 

Manager at (252) 215-2341 with additional questions regarding this matter. 

Sincerely, 

Douglas A. Jackson 

Mayor 

Cc: Winterville Town Council 

Terri L. Parker, Town Manager 

Keen Lassiter, Town Attorney 

61


	00_20210111_Agendav2_Amended
	06_1a_Proclamation_MLK_20210111
	06_2a_Proclamation_Human_Trafficking_20210111
	07_1a_Public_Comment_Shantel_Hawkins
	08_1a_Consent_Abstract_Minutesv2
	08_1b_Regular_Meeting_Minutes_20201214_DRAFT
	08_2a_Consent_Abstract_Eli's_Ridge_Ph_1&3_SW_Area_Annexv2
	08_2b_Annex_Petition_Eli's_Ridge_Ph_1&3_SW_Area
	08_2c_Elis Ridge Ph 1 & 3 SW Area - Annex Map
	08_2d_Legal Description - Elis Ridge Ph 1 & 3 SW Area
	08_2e_Investigate_Suff_Res_21-R-011_Eli's_Ridge_Phase_1&3_SW_Area
	08_2f_Draft_Cert_of_Suff_Eli's_Ridge_Phase_1&3_SW_Area
	09_1a_Consent_Abstract_Audit_Contractv2
	09_1b_Audit Contract FY 2021
	09_1c_2021 ToW Audit Engagement Letter
	10_1a_Suddenlink_Letter_Draft



